
United Nations FIFTH COMMITTEE, 1284th 
MEETING GENERAL 

ASSEMBLY 
TWENTY-THIRD SESSION 

Official Records • "<""" 

Friday, 13 December 1968, 
at 11.5 a.m. 

CONTENTS 

Page 

Agenda item 81: 
Personnel questions (continued): 
(§) Composition of the Secretariat: report of 

the Secretary-General (continued). • • • • • 1 

Administrative and financial implications of the 
draft resolution contained in document A/L.556 
on agenda item 64 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • 6 

Administrative and financial implications of 
draft resolutions I and II submitted by the 
Second Committee in document A/7383/ Add.1 
on agenda item 34 • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 7 

Agenda item 74: 
Budget estimates for the financial year 1969 

(continued) 
Unforeseen and extraordinary expenses 

(continued) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 7 

Chairman: M r. G. G. T C HER N 0 U C H T C HE N K 0 
(Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic). 

AGENDA ITEM 81 

Personnel questions (continued): 
(Q) Composition of the Secretariat: report of the 

Secretary-General (continued) (A/7334, A/7386 
and Carr .1, A/C.5/1205, A/C.5/L. 942 and Add.1, 
A/C .5/L. 962/Rev .1, A/C .5/L. 963 and Corr .1 and 
Add.1-5, A/C.5/L.965, A/C.5/L.966, A/C.5/ 
L.968-970, A/C.5/L.?72) 

1. Mr. RABETAFIKA (Madagascar) said that, after 
hearing the statement of the Secretary-General's 
representative (1280th meeting), his delegatwn 
realized the difficulty of reconciling apparently con­
tradictory requuements, which were subject to a 
varymg order of prwrity, as far as recruitment was 
concerned. The Secretary-General had indisputably 
sought positive solutions, and his delegation wished to 
compliment him on that, even though it belleved that he 
could have taken a different approach and have adopted 
methods better suited to the urgency and cogency of 
the wishes expressed by various delegations. 

2. He noted with satisfactwn that the distribution of 
staff by region was generally satisfactory, particularly 
where Africa was concerned. Nevertheless, certain 
adjustments were desirable m view of the comparative 
geographical distribution as shown m annex III to the 
Secretary-General's report (A/7334). It should not 
be forgotten that the loss of a proficient civil servant 
was a sacnfice for the African countries, but they 
willingly accepted it, since they saw that it constituted 

1 

NEW YORK 

a positive and practical form of participation in inter­
national life; that was why those countries pressed for 
certain adjustments within the region. 

3. As for linguistic balance, his delegation felt that 
it was not a question of granting one language or an­
other a privileged position in an international, and 
therefore, by definition, multilingual, Secretariat. It 
was none the less true that the General Assembly, in 
resolution 2 (I), had defined the working languages 
of the Organization and it was important to ensure that 
those languages were placed on an equal footing, both 
as working instruments of the Organization and its 
agencies and as criteria applicable to personnel re­
cruitment. Certainly, it was difficult to remedy in the 
space of a few years the accumulated errors of the 
past, but it was encouraging that the Secretary­
General had reacted favourably to the various pro­
posals aimed at ensuring a better linguistic balance 
within the Organization and Secretariat. 

4. It was gratifying to note the Secretary-General's 
statement in paragraphs 32 and 33 of his report that 
staff members engaged in the preparation of docu­
ments which directly served an organ of the United 
Nations were able and, in fact, encouraged, to work 
in the language of their choice. If that practice be­
came general, at least in the departments which 
were not purely administrative, it could reasonably 
be hoped that in a few years it would be possible to 
recruit staff who knew only one of the Secretariat's 
working languages, without that fact having any detri­
mental effect on the quality or efficiency of their work. 
The solution of the problem would be still further 
facilitated if the language training programme could 
be expanded, as the Secretary-General had, moreover, 
suggested. 

5. With regard to that programme, his delegation 
believed that in its first stage instruction should be 
centred on the acquisition of a practical knowledge 
of the language concerned; that could be accomplished 
in thirteen weeks. However, it would be unrealistic 
to hope that, after such a short time, a staff member 
would be able to write fluently in that language without 
an adequate prior knowledge of it. Instruction in the 
drafting of a text or technical report in a foreign 
language should feature in the ordinary training pro­
gramme, which should be reshaped to meet the new 
requirements. It would be a good idea to ascertain 
to what extent accelerated courses could be organized 
in locations other than Headquarters, so as to ensure 
better linguistic balance also in United Nations bod1es 
which had different working languages than those of 
the Secretariat; that would facilitate recruitment to 
those organs on a non-discrimmatory basis and main­
tain a certain continuity in the services. 

A/C. 5/SR.1284 



2 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session - Fifth Committee 

6. His delegation endorsed as a whole the recom­
mendations made by the Secretary-General in para­
graph 94, sub-paragraphs (D and (g), of his report, 
aimed at encouraging the acquisition of linguistic 
knowledge. At the twenty-second session the Com­
mittee had envisaged the introduction of a language 
bonus which, in the view of his delegation, was not a 
measure that discriminated against other languages, 
whatever ICSAB might think. Consequently, his dele­
gation, while maintaining 1ts stand with regard to the 
language bonus, felt duty bound to support any prac­
tical steps that would help to implement General 
Assembly resolution 2239 B (XXII). It hoped that the 
Committee would favour the recommendations made 
by the Secretary-General in paragraph 94 of his re­
port and taken up, m their essentials, in draft reso­
lution A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 and Add.1-5. His 
delegatwn supported the view that "knowledge of a 
second language" should be interpreted in a more 
general sense. Since it was above all a questwn of 
using the language studied for practical purposes, 
the language proficiency cert1ficate should suffice 
as a means of confirming a candidate's knowledge; 
a written examination was indispensable only when 
the official in question was required to work in the 
language being studied. 

7. The measures taken by the Secretary-General 
to make the use ofthe working languages more flexible 
and to expand the language traming programme should 
make it possible to implement more effectively 
General Assembly resolution 2241 B (XXI), concerning 
the recruitment of staff. If that principle were to be 
applied equitably, the methods of giving instruction in 
the second language should be improved, so that those 
who decided to learn it would benefit extensively. 
Furthermore, if knowledge of a second language was 
regarded as desirable for the work of the Secretariat 
itself, consideration should be given to incentives, 
not as a means of discriminating against certain 
grades, but in recognition of increased proficiency 
and the desire of some staff members to improve 
their knowledge in the interests of the service. In 
some national civil services bonuses or special pro­
motions were granted to those who had completed 
courses enabling them to do their jobs more effi­
ciently. His delegation believed that the Secretariat 
could usefully imitate such practices, particularly 
as the final objective was not so much the personal 
interest of the staff members as that of the Organiza­
tion, which needed the serv1ees of persons ofthe high­
est qualifications and competence. 

8. Mr. ELIAV (Israel) said that, even if the desired 
geographical distribution had not yet been achieved 
within the Secretariat, progress had nevertheless 
been made in that direction. True, some countries, 
not all of them developed countries, were still over­
represented, while others were under-represented. 
The problem was extremely complex and the situation 
did not lend itself to radical changes overnight, as 
had been rightly pointed out by the Under-Secretary­
General for Administration and Management. Those 
concerned in the Secretariat should obviously make 
every effort to improve geographical distribution; 
in that connexion, he noted with satisfaction para­
graph 88 of the Secretary-General's report and the 

statement made before the Committee by the Under­
Secretary-General for Administration and Manage­
ment at the 1280th meeting. 

9. His delegation also believed that the principle of 
geographical distribution in the Secretariat should 
apply not only to the Secretariat as a whole but, as 
far as was poss1ble, to every broad field of activity. 
On the other hand, as the representative of Australia 
had stated during the general discussion (1247th 
meeting), the performance and personality of staff 
members were the only criteria to be taken into 
consideration as far as promotion was concerned. 
His delegation therefore supported the recommenda­
tion made by the Committee on the Reorganization 
of the Secretariat (Committee of Seven) in its report 
(A/7359, annex) concerning the need to revise and 
improve the existing system of promotion in the 
Secretariat, including the possibility of combining 
the existing Director and Professional grades into a 
single category with more grade levels. In particu­
lar, he endorsed the recommendation for the institu­
tion of a long-term staff recruitment plan, the imple­
mentation of which would improve geographical 
distribution. It would be most fitting if those recom­
mendations were implemented as soon as possible. 

10. In so far as the language question was concerned, 
his delegation fully shared the general desire to en­
sure greater equity between the offic1al languages of 
the United Nations. However, on that matter, too, it 
seemed that flexibility and feasibility were all im­
portant. While supporting in principle draft resolution 
A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 and Add.1-5, his delegation 
wondered if its provisions, especially those dealing 
with promotion, should not perhaps be more flexible 
in view of the convincing arguments that the Under­
Secretary-General for Administration and Manage­
ment and some of the representatives had put before 
the Committee. It might be possible to tone down the 
draft resolution by adding the words "in general" to 
operative paragraph 1, sub-paragraph (£)-whereby 
the relevant passages would read "will in general be 
conditional upon" and "will in general permit"; that 
would be stating the Organization's policy in a prac­
tical way. The United Nations should differentiate in 
principle between the need to accord absolute equality 
in opportunity and promotion to any staff member who 
was proficient in any official language and the need to 
promote bi- or tri-lingualism, which was of course 
very desirable but less categorical than the former. 
However, even that distinction should not prevent the 
Committee from adopting practical, constructive and 
economical measures for the further implementation 
of General Assembly resolution 2359 B (XXII), as for 
instance those contained in the draft resolution. 

11. Mr. DYRING (Norway) pointed out that both 
representatives and international civil servants who 
did not come from a large language group were placed 
at a great disadvantage. However, he realized that in 
order to take part in the work of international or­
ganizations it was necessary to acquire one or two 
foreign languages. It should not be considered a 
severe punishment to be required to learn foreign 
languages, because the person who extended his 
knowledge of languages benefited both his Govern­
ment and himself. 



1284th meeting- 13 December 1968 3 

12. It was in that spirit that his delegation viewed 
draft resolution A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 andAdd.1-5. 
It appeared that the sponsors had approached thetr 
task with a flexible attitude and with a desire to pro­
pose measures which could gain the broadest possible 
support without losing sight of the aim. No one could 
disagree about the desirability of havmg international 
servants of the Organization who were proficient in 
two of the major languages used in the Secretariat. 
Without gomg into detail over the draft resolutwn, his 
delegation merely wished to say that efficiency, com­
petence and integrity should be the decisive considera­
tions in staff recruitment, m accordance with Ar­
ttcle 101 of the United Nations Charter, and that that 
might at times necessitate ignoring both the prmctple 
of geographical distribution and ·knowledge of lan­
guages. The Secretary-General should in the last 
resort be allowed sufftcient discretion to decide on 
behalf of the Organization. 

13. As for the question of introducing new working 
languages into the Secretariat, hts delegation merely 
wished to emphasize that every effort should be made 
to ensure that the chosen languages of the Orgamza­
tion should be as widely and effectively used as pos­
sible. That depended on not having too many languages 
to grapple with. For practical purposes, the Organiza­
tion had chosen two languages as working languages 
in tts Secretariat, and five official languages for its 
chief organs. Those languages had been chosen as 
workmg tools and not because of thetr greatness or 
value over and above other languages. The delegations 
of small countries such as his own had accepted the 
necesstty for conductmg business in a language foretgn 
to them, not because their language was inferior but 
for the sake of economy and efftctency. They did not 
think it was too much to ask that language groups 
whtch were not represented among the working lan­
guages of the United Nations organs should make the 
same sacrifice. His delegation was neither for nor 
against any particular language, but wished simply 
to provide the Organization with a serviceable instru­
ment of communication at the cheapest possible price. 
In followmg the proposed course of action, the Or­
gamzation might be facing situatwns in a few years 
where several major language groups might oe 
claiming a more privileged status for themselves. 
His delegation felt that a thorough study should be 
made of what those proposals would mean m terms 
of expenses and reduced effictency. It would be 
dangerous to embark by stages upon a process which 
it would be difficult or tmpossible to halt once it had 
been set in motion. 

14. Mr. OUCIF (Algerta) satd it appeared from the 
Secretary-General's report that the developing coun­
tries, and m particular certain Afrtcan countries, 
were still inadequately represented m the Secretanat, 
desptte the adoptwn of resolution 2359 A (XXII), in 
which the General Assembly had requested the Secre­
tary-General to continue his efforts to achieve a better 
geographical distribution of the staff of the Secretartat. 

15. Indeed, two geographical areas, Africa and 
Western Europe, had registered an above-average 
increase. Nevertheless, several countries in the m­
terior of Africa were inadequately represented. His 
delegation understood the dtfftculties which some coun-

tries faced in wishing to be represented in the Secre­
tariat, but that did not prevent other countries from 
making competent and efficient people available to 
the Secretariat. Greater participation in the work of 
the Secretariat on the part of all Member States could 
only be beneficwl, and the absence of African nationals 
in the htgher echelons was particularly regrettable. 

16. As far as the question of llnguistic balance was 
concerned, the General Assembly, in resolution 2359 
B (XXII), had invited the Secretary-General to take 
steps to ensure a better utilization of the llnguistic 
abilities of the staff and a better balance among the 
working languages in the recruitment of Secretariat 
staff at all levels, and in particular at the higher level, 
wtthout prejudice to the principle of equitable geo­
graphical distribution. During the twenty-second ses­
swn (1209th meeting), his delegation had emphasized 
the fact that staff recruitment should be carried out in 
an objective manner and that the nationals of English­
speaking countries should not be given preference. 
That principle should be adhered to if the Organization 
was to enjoy the full confidence of all its Members. 

17. His delegatwn also wished to associate itself 
wtth the other delegations which had drawn the Secre­
tary-General's attention to the need for more equitable 
use of the working languages of the Secretariat. There 
was at present a serwus imbalance which should be 
rectified, so that the working languages would have 
equal status. In keeping with that principle, Secretariat 
documents should be issued simultaneously in all the 
languages, so that delegations would be able to parti­
cipate more actively in the work of the Organization. 

18. The Secretary-General should be invtted once 
again to take certam practical steps to ensure the 
lmgutstic balance which was so necessary if the Secre­
tariat was to be effective. Hence it would vote in 
favour of draft resolution A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 
and Add.1-5 which had been introduced on behalf of 
the sponsors by the representative of Tunisia. It 
would likewise vote in favour of the revised draft 
resolution submitted by the representative of the 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics (A/C.5/L.962/ 
Rev.1). 

19. Mr. MORRIS (Liberia) endorsed the observations 
which had been made on the question, in particular 
by the representatives of Italy and Zambia at the 
1283rd meetmg. He felt that the United Nations should 
use its available resources chiefly in order to 
strengthen its peace-keeping and technical assistance 
operations, and not in order to expand the use of 
languages. There were m the world many far more 
urgent problems for which the Organization should 
try to find a solutwn. 

20. Mr. BYKOV (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) 
said, in reply to the questions put to him concerning 
the draft resolution presented by his delegation 
(A/C.5/L.965), that the aim of the proposal was to 
rectify in a relatively short space of time an injustice 
affecting one of the most important rights of States, 
that of participating in the functioning of the Organiza­
tion. Although the General Assembly had often ex­
pressed its anxiety at the slow rate of improvement 
of geographical distribution in the Secretariat, the 
problem had not yet been solved; such a state of af-



4 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session - Fifth Committee 

fairs could only mar the effectiveness of the Organiza­
tion's work, not to mention the fact that it was hardly 
conducive to confidence and understanding among 
States. H1s country had submitted its proposal at the 
request of several delegations which wished to see the 
Secretary-General take energetic remedial measures 
to ensure more equitable geographical distribution of 
Secretariat staff. The purpose of his proposal was to 
ensure the desirable minimum number of posts for 
the 32 countries which were under-represented. An 
attempt might be made to solve the problem through 
the increase in staff which had b~en requested by the 
Secretary-General for 1969. The delay of two years 
would give the Secretary-General tlme to recruit 
nationals of the 32 countries concerned as well as 
of other countries wh1ch had not attained the minimum 
number of posts to which they were entitled. 

21. Draft resolution A/C.5/L.966, which also dealt 
with the composition of the Secretariat, was too weak, 
weaker even than the resolution adopted on the same 
subject at the previous session, which at least had had 
the merit of expressmg the concern of States at the 
signiflCant imbalances in the geographical distributwn 
of the staff of the Secretariat. The new text did not 
even express that concern and did not propose any 
specific measures. The Under-Secretary-General for 
Administration and Management had spoken at the 
1282nd meetmg of the need to maintain a balance be­
tween the various principles and criteria to be applied 
in recruiting staff members and experts. His delega­
tion was aware of that need and was proposing specific 
measures to correct the imbalance characterizingthe 
recruitment of staff members. Draft resolution A/ 
C.5/L.966 proposed nothing of the sort and merely 
requested the Secretary-General to continue his ef­
forts. For ten years it had been argued that the prob­
lem could only be solved gradually, and nothing had 
been changed in the course of those ten years. 

22. The representative of the United States of America 
had tried to demonstrate that certain countries were 
under-represented because they themselves tended to 
restrict the number of their nationals who could apply 
for Secretariat posts. It was claimed for example, that 
it was the policy of the socialist countries to allow 
only a small number of allegedly selected candidates 
to apply. That was the argument put forward by the 
United States delegation for a long time, an argument 
which was completely unfounded. Every year the 
socialist countries presented candidates, who were 
apparently not eligible under the recruitment policy 
of the Office of Personnel. It would be paradoxical 
to accuse the Ukramian Soviet Socialist Republic of 
pursuing a restnctive policy when its delegation was 
precisely proposing measures to encourage the re­
cruitment of nationals of under-represented countries. 
If there was any truth in the United States delegation's 
argument the Ukrainian delegation should be among 
those voting against the kind of text it had proposed. 

23. He hoped that the draft paragraph submitted by 
his delegatwn would receive the support of the Com­
mittee. He would vote in favour of the draft resolution 
submitted by the Soviet Union (A/C.5/L.962/Rev.l) 
concerning the inclusion of Russian among the working 
languages of the principal United Nations organs, since 
such a step could only contribute to better understand­
ing among States. 

24. Mr. SABIK (Poland) recalled that his delegation 
had always upheld the principle of the plurality of 
working languages and had therefore always supported 
the efforts towards proper treatment of English, 
French and Spanish m the Secretariat. Faithful to 
that principle, which derived from the universality of 
the United Nations implicit in the Charter, his dele­
gation supported the inclusion of Russian among the 
working languages of the principal United Nations or­
gans as a first step. In supporting that proposal, 
which was the subject of the draft resolution submit­
ted by the Soviet Union (A/C.5/L.962/Rev.1), his 
delegation was motivated solely by the desire to en­
sure that full heed was paid to the purposes of the 
Charter and to place Russian on the same footing as 
the other working languages, in the interest of im­
proving the efficiency of the work of United Nations 
organs. That efficiency was certainly not threatened at 
that stage by the proliferation of working languages; if 
that had been the case, there would not be the present 
concern for a better linguistic balance. 

25. The arguments for including Russian among the 
working languages of the principal United Nations 
bodies were well known: Russian, which was becoming 
more and more widely used as a working language at 
international conferences, had actually become an 
international language; its importance in the discus­
sions of United Nations organs showed that it played 
a role m the functioning of the Organization. More­
over, as had been pointed out, the original distinction 
drawn between official and working languages had be­
come blurred and was no longer realistic. That was 
apparent from the Secretary-General's report, which 
indicated the great progress that had been made in 
eliminating distinctions between the different lan­
guages. It would seem, moreover, from the note (A/ 
C.5/L.972) submitted by the Secretary-General on the 
financial implications of the proposal, that the inclusion 
of Russian would not entail very large additional ex­
penditure. His delegation was convinced that the adop­
tion of that measure would help to strengthen the role 
of the United Nations in the maintenance of international 
peace and security. 

26. Mr. McGOUGH (Argentina) congratulated the 
Secretary-General on the extremely interesting re­
port submitted to the Committee. The part of the 
report dealing with the composition of the Secretariat 
(A/7334, chap. 11) showed that, although the geo­
graphical distribution of the staff had become some­
what more equitable, there were nevertheless some 
geographical regions and, within those regions, some 
countries, which were under-represented. The Secre­
gary-General should, therefore, continue his efforts to 
correct the imbalances which still persisted. 

27. His delegation noted with satisfaction that linguis­
tic balance was st1ll a central preoccupation of a 
large number of delegations and attached great im­
portance to the matter, because language teaching 
was becoming increasingly important in Argentina, 
as was shown by the fact that English had been taught 
as early as primary-school level since 1967. 

28. Referring to the draft resolutions on linguistic 
balance, he said that his delegation had not had time 
to give proper consideration to the different texts 
submitted in rapid succession at the previous meet-



1284th meeting - 13 December 1968 5 

ing. He would not, therefore, comment on them for 
the time being, particularly since the proposals had 
financial implications which should be scrutinized. 

29. As for draft resolution A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 
and Add.1-5, of which his delegation was one of the 
sponsors, an amendment would probably be submit­
ted to operative paragraph 1, sub-paragraph (Q), and 
the co-sponsors, in a spirit of compromise, were 
studying possible changes with other delegations. It 
would therefore be better to postpone the vote until 
the following Monday. 

30. Mr. NASHER (United States of America) said 
that his delegation had read with great interest the 
information compiled by the Secretary-General on 
the linguistic requirements demanded on recruitment 
and on the accelerated language training programme 
for staff members, particularly at Headquarters. It 
was clear from the Secretary-General's report that 
better ut1lization of the linguistic ab11lt1es of the staff 
could be achieved in a relatively short time. 

31. His delegation supported the comments made by 
the Secretary-General on the language training pro­
gramme, subject to the reservations expressed by the 
Adv1sory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary 
Questions (see A/7386 and Corr.1), and therefore 
supported the additional appropnations requested. 
But he recalled that, at the previous session, his 
delegation had been unable to support part B of General 
Assembly resolutwn 2359 (XXII), which called for a 
language bonus for Professional staff subject to geo­
graphical distribution who were using two working 
languages. 

32. H1s delegatwn was aware of the efforts being 
made at the current session by the former propo­
nents of the language bonus, in submitting draft 
resolution A/C.5/L.963 and Corr.1 and Add.1-5, to 
find a better solution to the problem, but in the final 
analysis his delegation would prefer the solution 
proposed in paragraph 94 of the report, which had the 
advant&ge of leaving the Secretary-General greater 
flexibility m implementing the provisions of the 
operative paragraph. Furthermore, while the finan­
cial 1mplications of the draft resolution, as stated by 
the Secretary-General (A/C.5/1205), would be high 
in 1969, they would likely be higher in subsequent 
years. 

33. His delegation's reservations on the draft reso­
lution in question concerned several specific points. 
It seemed, m the f1rst place, that paragraph 1, sub­
paragraph (~) (ii), undoubtedly through an unintentwnal 
mistake in drafting, went beyond its purpose of en­
suring increased language profic1ency; in its existing 
form, it would inadvertently limit appomtments to 
"fixed terms", even if a cand1date had full language 
proficiency, or after he had attained it. That provision 
must be changed. Paragraph 1, sub-paragraph (g) (i), 
should be reworded so as to permit exceptions and 
give the Secretary-General a certain freedom of action 
in cases where he cons1dered certain exceptions to be 
necessary m the interest of the Organizatwn. The 
reservations on sub-paragraph (!2) (ii) were more im­
portant, for his delegation doubted whether the actwn 
which it recommended could really make a material 
contribution to achieving a better distribution of lm-

guistic skills; that action would, moreover, be very 
expensive. His delegation favoured a formulation 
which would indicate that the contemplated system 
would be experimental. Operative paragraph 3 gave 
rise to serious reservations. It would be sufficient, 
in order to make it acceptable, to provide that the 
second language, knowledge of which would be con­
firmed by the award of the language proficiency cer­
tificate, would be one of the workmg languages, and 
not one of the official languages, as was provided by 
the existing text. He would revert to the problem 
raised by that question at a later stage. Such were 
the present doubts and concerns about the draft reso­
lutwn as drafted. His delegation hoped, however, that 
the changes which would be made in it in the course 
of the consultatwns between the sponsors and certain 
delegations would make it possible for h1s delegation 
to support the draft. 

34. Turning to the question of including Russian 
among the working languages of the United Nations, 
he said that he would like, before examining the im­
portant administrative and financial implications of 
that proposal, to speak about the main problems to 
which it gave rise. 

35. First, as several delegations had correctly 
pointed out, draft resolution A/C.5/L.962 was a "po­
litical" resolution having the ultimate aim of placing 
the Russ1an language on a footing of equality with the 
other workmg languages in order that it might-as its 
advocates suggested-reflect the Soviet Union's place 
in today's world. Consequently, the argument conti­
nued, the United Natwns should be w1lling to spend 
whatever amount of money was required. 

36. Secondly, it was clear beyond the shadow of a 
doubt that the revised draft resolution (A/C.5/L.962/ 
Rev.1) was a first step towards making Russian a 
working language of all the United Natwns organs with 
all the attendant costs, at the earliest possible date. 

37. His delegation had no quarrel with the fact that 
Chinese, English, French, Russian and Spanish, were, 
as provided m rule 51 of the rules of procedure of 
the General Assembly, official languages of the United 
Nations. That was essential if the United Nations was 
to .function effectively, and it was necessary, so that 
the Soviet Union could fully and equally participate in 
the work of the official organs of the United Nations. 
However, the subject before the Comm1ttee was what 
languages were required to carry on the day-to-day 
work of the Secretariat and of the other principal 
organs. The question which must be answered was 
whether the principal organs of the United Nations 
could and must function effectively and with reasonable 
cost if Russian was added to the present workmg 
languages, and whether the high cost that would be 
mcurred by such a decision was necessary or justified. 

38. An attempt must accordingly be made to discover 
the underlying reasons why rule 51 of the rules of 
procedure of the General Assembly provided for three 
working languages, namely, English, French and 
Spanish. The reason for that arrangement was that, 
of the Members of the United Nations sending delega­
tions to the United Nations and supplying staff to its 
principal organs, there were 72 which used English, 
28 whose basic language was French, 20 which used 



6 General Assembly- Twenty-third Session- Fifth Committee 

Spanish, 4 which used Russian and 1 which used 
Chinese. It was that ratio which should guide the 
Fifth Committee in its decision in that matter. Re­
gardless of prestige, power or what Members were 
founding Members, the Committee must ensure that 
in carrying out their day-to-day work, the principal 
organs of the United Nations did not become new 
Towers of Babel. The key test as a working language 
was efficiency and economy. While there was no 
doubt that Russian must be retained as an official 
language, perhaps for the soundly leased "power" 
reasons already mentioned, those reasons d1d not 
apply in so far as the working languages were 
concerned. 

39. The financial implicatwns of the draft resolu­
tion could be evaluated only by going beyond what 
immediate effects such a decision, if adopted, would 
have in 1969. Although all the facts were not known, 
enough of them were available to project with some 
accuracy what the cost to the Organization would be 
if Russian became a full working language. The 
present cost of the Russian language at Headquarters 
was $2,300,000 a year. The additional cost of making 
Russian a working language of the General Assembly, 
the Security Council, the Economic and Social Council 
and the Trusteeship Council would be $1,300,000 a 
year. If such an arrangement was extended to the 
Secretariat and the International Court of Justtce, the 
corresponding cost could be estimated at $900,000 a 
year. Furthermore, the use of Russian in units of the 
United Nations at locations other than Headquarters 
would certainly add another $600,000. The total cost 
would therefore be about $5 million a year. The only 
answer which could be given to the question whether 
that cost was justified for "political n reasons was that 
it was not. It must also be noted that those costs were 
direct costs, without allowance for the decreased ef­
ficiency of the staff that would result from such a 
measure. Another point to be borne in mind was that if 
Russian was included among the working languages of 
the United Nations, efforts would inevitably be made to 
do the same in the specialized agencies. Further­
more, if Russian was to be considered a working 
language, it would eventually be impossible to deny 
the same status to the other official language­
Chinese. The additional costs would then no longer 
be just $5 million but perhaps twice as much. 

40. It was for those reasons that the Umted States 
delegation believed that the Soviet Union draft reso­
lution should be withdrawn. It should not in any case 
be adopted. His delegation stressed that its concerns 
were the administrative, budgetary and management 
considerations inherent in the proposal. It had not ap­
proached the matter on an East-West or poll tical basis. 

41. Mr. STARK (Under-Secretary-General for Ad­
ministration and Management) said that before pro­
viding the representative of Peru with the clarification 
he had requested at the 1253rd meeting, he wished to 
give the Peruvian delegation the assurances for which 
it had asked while at the same time maintaining the 
general reservations which he himself had formulated 
at the 1282nd meeting and which reduced themselves 
to the following consideration, namely, that it was not 
possible for the Secretary-General to apply the prin­
Clples governing the recruitment of staff with absolute 
rigour and ngidity. 

42. The representative of Peru had wanted to know 
the Secretary-General's opinion on the possibility of 
dec1ding not to recruit any more nationals of the 
over-represented countries, except in special cir­
cumstances. The Secretary-General always applied, 
in the case of each country, the system of desirable 
ranges. It was not his intention to recruit any more 
nationals of countries which were already over­
represented, except m special circumstances, which 
sometimes occurred: it was generally known, for 
example, what difficulties the regional economic com­
missions sometimes encountered in filling the expert 
posts which they had available. 

43. As to whether, in the case of a vacancy, a post 
should be reserved for a national of the same 
nationality as his predecessor, there was no set rule. 
The main criterion was, of course, competence, in 
addition to the other conditions which a candidate 
must meet. 

44. As to the number of assigned posts, he pointed out 
that in applying the system of desirable ranges for each 
country, the Secretary-General gave due attention to 
the relative number of posts in the various categories, 
so that the number of posts to which each country was 
entitled was weighted against that factor. 

45. Mr. FAURA (Peru) thanked Mr. Stark for the 
information which he had just furnished and whichhad 
cleared up the doubts of his delegation. He asked that 
the information given by the Under-Secretary-General 
for Administration and Management should be repro­
duced in full in the report of the Fifth Committee on 
that question. 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
OF THE DRAFT RESOLUTION CONTAINED IN 
DOCUMENT A/L.556 ON AGENDA ITEM 64* (A/ 
C.S/1208) 

46. The CHAIRMAN called upon the Committee to 
consider the note (A/C.5/1208) by the Secretary­
General on the administrative and financial implica­
tions of a draft resolution (A/L.556) dealing with the 
recommendations made by the United Nations Council 
for Nam1bia in its report.l..l The Secretary-General 
estimated that implementation of the provisions of 
the draft resolution would necessitate an additional 
appropriation of $90,000 under section 17 of the 
budget for 1969. 

47. Mr. BANNIER (Chairman of the Advisory Com­
mittee for Administrative and Budgetary Questions) 
noted that the estimate was intended to cover, inter 
alia, the establishment of an office in Africa and the 
cost of the meetings to be organized with the repre­
sentatives of the Namibian people. With regard to 
those meetings, it should be noted that the Secretary­
General based himself on the principle that all mem­
bers of the Council would participate. The Advisory 
Comm1ttee recalled that an amount of $184,600 had 

*(uesuon of Namtbta: 
(~) Report of the Spectal Comm!tlee on the Sttuanon wtth regard to 

the lmplernentanon on the Declarauon on the Grannng of Inde­
pendence to Coloma! Countnes and Peoples; 

(lz) Report of the Umted Nanons Counc1l for Nam1b1a, 
(<) Appomtment of the L'mted Nanons Comnnss10ner for Nam1bia. 

!J OfhClal Records of the General Assembly, Twenry-thlrd SessiOn, 
agenda nem 64, documents Aj7338 and Corr.l (1ssued separately). 



1284th meeting- 13 December 1968 7 

already been requested under section 17, chapter VII 
(United Nations Council for Namibia and United Com­
missioner for Namibia), of the budget estimates for 
the financial year 1969 (A/7205), and that the amount 
was intended to cover travel costs. 

48. The Advisory Committee therefore believed it 
possible to reduce the expenditure substantially but, 
in view of the difficulty of arriving at an accurate 
estimate of that expenditure, the Committee thought 
that the financial implications of the draft resolution 
in question could be estimated at $65,000, without 
taking into account any decisions which the General 
Assembly might subsequently adopt concerning the 
special training programmes for Namibians. 

49. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Rapporteur 
should inform the General Assembly direct that, if 
it adopted draft resolution A/L.556, an additional 
appropriation of $65,000 would be required under 
section 17 of the budget for 1969. 

It was so decided. 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
OF DRAFT RESOLUTIONS I AND II SUBMITTED 
BY THE SECOND COMMITTEE IN DOCUMENT 
A/7383/ADD.1 ON AGENDA ITEM 34* 

50. Mr. BANNIER (Chairman of the Advisory Com­
mittee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions) 
said that the Advisory Committee was faced with a 
delicate procedural problem which urgently required 
a decision by the Fifth Committee. In the course of 
the day the General Assembly was to take up, in 
plenary meeting, part II of the report (A/7383/ Add.1) 
of the Second Committee concerning the United 
Nations Conference on Trade and Development, 
paragraph 14 of which contained two draft resolutions 
on which the General Assembly would have to reach a 
decision. Rule 154 of the General Assembly's rules of 
procedure provided that no resolution in respect of 
which expenditures are anticipated by the Secretary­
General shall be voted by the General Assembly until 
the Administrative and Budgetary Committee has had 
an opportunity of stating the effect of the proposal 
upon the budget estimates of the United Nations". The 
Advisory Committee, which had just been informed 
that the financial implications in question were esti­
mated by the Secretary-General to amount to some 
$100,000, was unable to deal immediately with that 
estimate and to report thereon to the Fifth Commit­
tee. He therefore proposed, in view of the urgency 
of the matter, that the Fifth Committee should, as 
an exceptional measure agree to waive rule 154 and 
inform the General Assembly that the adoption of 
the draft resolutions in question would involve ex­
penditure of the order of $100,000, it being understood 
that the definitive amount of the appropriations for 
that purpose in the budget for 1969 would subsequently 
be brought to the General Assembly's attention after 
the Advisory Committee had reported thereon to the 
Fifth Committee.Y 

*Umted Nanons Conference on Trade and Development: 
(l!) Report of the Conference on Its secona sess1on; 
(£) Report of the Trade and Development Board. 

3./ See documents A/C.S/1206 (note by the Secretary-General) and 
A/7413 (report of the Adv1sory Committee), circulated subseqently. 
See also the 129lst meenng. 

51. The CHAIRMAN said that, if there was no objec­
tion, he would take that the Committee accepted the 
proposal of the Chairman of the Advis9ry Committee, 
having regard to the circumstances and to the fact 
that, of the two draft resolutions in question, one had 
been unanimously adopted by the Second Committee, 
while the other came from the Trade and Development 
Board. 

AGENDA ITEM 74 

Budget estimates for the financial year 1969 (conti­
nued) (A/7125, A/7205 and Corr.1, A/7207, A/7236, 
A/7255, A/7280, A/7304, A/7336, A/7337, A/7339, 
A/7340, A/7341 I A/7351' A/7356, A/7359, A/7366, 
A/7367 and Corr.1, A/7373, A/C.5/ll68, A/C.5/ 
1169 and Corr.1, A/C.5/1175-1179, A/C.5/1182, 
A/C.5/1183, A/C.5/1185, A/C.5/1186 and Add.1, 
A/C.5/1187-1189, A/C.5/1200, A/C.5/L.943, A/ 
C.5/L.948, A/C.5/L.950, A/C.5/L.960) 

Unforeseen and extraordinary expenses (continued)** 
(A/7336) 

52. Mr. YUNUS (Pakistan) said that, in order to be 
able to conclude its discussion of the definition of 
unforeseen and extraordinary expenses by dealing 
with the report (A/7336) of the Advisory Committee 
on Administrative and Budgetary Questions with full 
knowledge of the facts, the Fifth Committee had the 
right to expect full and complete information to be 
submitted to it, irrespective of the complexity of the 
problem. While appreciating the efforts of the Ad­
visory Committee and the Secretariat, his delegation 
thought that the one document submitted to the Com­
mittee left it in the dark concerning a number of im­
portant points. 

53. He had certain observations to make. First of all, 
the question of unforeseen and extraordinary expenses 
should be approached from the point of view of the 
effects of the proposed new procedure on the work of 
the programme-formulating bodies and on the prepa­
ration and administration of the United Nations budget. 
As the Advisory Committee pointed out, the definition 
of those expenses was part of the new budgetary con­
cept characterized by the idea of the planning esti­
mate. Under that new procedure the programme­
formulating bodies were called upon to define their 
work programme two years in advance and then to 
adhere to it, The uncertainties and needs for adjust­
ment created by the passage of time could be recti­
fied through the supplementary estimates procedure. 
But the Advisory Committee's proposals sought to 
shut the door. The programme-formulating bodies 
would thus find themselves in a strait jacket, being 
obliged to say what they wanted two years ahead 
of time and to wait until the next budgetary period if 
something occurred in the meanwhile, unless, of 
course, the new element could be certified to be 
such as to lead to serious detriment to the United 
Nations. Since that exception would normally relate 
to political matters, the new procedure outlined in 
the Advisory Committee's report, would be a solid 
block in the way of requests for supplementary 
appropriations in social and economic work pro­
grammes. True, the Fifth Committee had been told 

**Resumed from the 1280th meeting. 



8 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session- Fifth Committee 

that the new procedure was neither meant to curtail 
the freedom of the programme-formulating bodies 
nor to deprive the Secretary-General of his freedom 
of action. What aim did the new procedure pursue? 
And what exactly was the criterion for certifying 
serious detriment? Serious detriment was a matter 
to be determined by Member States under the par­
liamentary procedures of the United Nations. Hence 
the question. might legitimately be asked what was 
to become of the sovereign powers of Member States 
in respect of work programmes legislated by them, 
if the Secretary-General was supposed to certify 
whether a danger existed m respect of a new request. 
Furthermore, even if Member States accepted that 
position, the Secretariat could only certify that the 
work programme in question, or an item of it, had 
been duly authorized by the programme-formulating 
body concerned, which alone was competent to deter­
mine the relevant priorities. Therefore the reserva­
tions expressed in 1967 by the developing countries 
concerning the planning estimate seemed to apply 
also to the procedure proposed by the Advisory Com­
mittee. E1ther that proposal should be modified, or 
the function of certifying whether serious detriment 
to the United Natwns would result if any item of the 
work programme was postponed until the following 
legislative period should be exercised by the pro­
gramme-formulating body concerned. 

54. Passing to the definitions of "unforeseen related 
expenses" and "unforeseen new expenses", wh1ch 
seemed to replace, respectively, what had formerly 
been called "unforeseen expenses" and "extraordinary 
expenses", he thought that the words themselves were 
less important than the new procedures contemplated 
which were descnbed in paragraphs 24 to 30 of the 
Advisory Committee's report. That wa-s where the 
real change lay. But a basic concept discussed in 
paragraph 23 deserved some attention, namely, that, 
smce the budget was approved a few days before the 
start of the budget year, programmes qualifying for 
appropriations must already exist on paper. From 
that the conclusion was drawn that a subsidiary body 
whose work programme was too vague to enable the 
General Assembly to make even an ad hoc appropria­
tion should not be entitled to seek funds under the 
terms of the resolution on unforeseen and extraordi­
nary expenses. But there was more than just a sub­
sidiary body's work programme as a whole which 
could be vague. What happened to those 1tems wh1ch 
were perce1ved some time after the budget est1mates 
and planmng estimate had been made? According to 
the Advisory Committee's report, it seemed that, 
since supplementary funds could be sought only for 
unforeseen emergency expenses, those items could 
no longer be provided for in a current budgetary 
perwd, at least so far as economic and social acti vi­
ties were concerned. What happened then to the deci­
swns taken by the Economic and Social Council at its 
summer session? The problem would only be com­
pounded when the planning estimate, and especially 
the proposed biennial budgetary cycle, were put into 
effect. 

55. The whole approach to the matter of unforeseen 
and extraordinary expenses therefore needed further 
examination in order to ward off the dangers inherent 
in the planning estimate procedure. 

56. Moreover, the new procedures proposed by the 
Advisory Comm1ttee might result in the Secretary­
General's taking steps not consistent with sound 
budgetary practice. If, for example, some unexpected 
occurrence took place at the beginning of the financial 
year, the Secretary-General, since he would be barred 
by virtue of paragraph 30 ofthe Advisory Committee's 
report from requesting supplementary appropriations, 
might prefer to avail himself of the resolution on un­
foreseen expenses instead of meeting the new expendi­
ture within the approved appropriations, lest he be 
unable later in the year to provide for genuinely addi­
tional expenditure for wh1ch he could not invoke the 
provisions of the resolution on unforeseen expenses. 
If he was later asked to certify that he was unable at 
that early stage to meet the unforeseen new expenses 
or the unforeseen related expenses from within the 
approved appropriations, he would find himself in a 
dilemma: if he did furnish the certification and the 
appropriation later ran short, he would be left with 
no further recourse; if he did not furnish the certifica­
tion and savings were later made, he would be in just 
as difficult a position. That dilemma should not be 
forced on the Secretary-General. 

57. Agam, account had to be taken not only of the 
Secretary-General's reactions but of the procedures 
of the Advisory Committee itself. Cuts in appropria­
tions imposed by the latter-quite legitimately, of 
course-were often based on imprecise est1mates or 
vague opinions. If the Advisory Committee recom­
mended excessive cuts the Secretary-General would 
find himself in a difficult budgetary situation. 

58. It was of course proposed, in order precisely to 
allow the Secretary-General some flexibility, to in­
clude in the budget a special appropriation line of 
$300,000 or $400,000. It would appear that the Advisory 
Committee had chosen that recourse in order to put 
an end to requests for supplementary appropriations, 
except where there was a risk of serwus detriment 
to the Organization. In view of the uncertainties al­
ready pointed out, however, the Pakistani delegation 
felt that to flx a special appropriation line for urgent 
expenses within such limits was not a very precise 
or sound way to administer the budget. Moreover, since 
the special approprwtwn line would probably be used 
to offset the Advisory Committee's cuts, it was by no 
means clear what degree of flexibility it would give 
the Secretary-General. In pomt of fact that proposal 
by the 1\dvisory Committee was tantamount to admit­
ting the need for supplementary est1mates. 

59. Another feature of the new procedure proposed 
by the Advisory Committee was that where the Secre­
tary-General could under the existing procedures take 
certain necessary action, for instance in respect of 
staff salaries and allowances, he would in future have 
to mform the Advisory Committee whether he could 
absorb the additional costs withm ex1sting appropria­
tions or, if he could not, request the Committee's 
prior approval under the resolution on unforeseen 
expenses. But such actwn by the Secretary-General, 
it should not be forgotten, was governed by General 
Assembly resolutions, which he merely put into effect. 
It would seem that that discretion of the Secretary­
General was not to apply to expenditure which was 
manifestly covered by standing instructwns of the 
General Assembly. 



• 
1284th meeting - 13 December 1968 9 

60. It also had to be remembered that under the sup­
plementary estimates procedure, which was a device 
to provide for the errors inevitable in all projections, 
it was possible to deal not only with cases in which 
appropriations were exceeded, but also the reverse. 
If it was allowed that circumstances might result in 
expenditure being smaller than had been foreseen, it 
was logical to allow also that supplementary appro­
priations might be justified. 

61. Lastly, the Advisory Committee's report made 
no mention at all of regulation 3.8 of the Financial 
Regulations of the United Nations, which provided that 
"supplementary estimates may be submitted by the 
Secretary-General whenever necessary". Operative 
paragraph 3 of the draft resolution annexed to the 
report sought to modify regulation 3.8 by making the 
submission of requests for supplementary estimates 
subject to the terms of the resolution relating to un­
foreseen expenses, thus giving the Advisory Commit­
tee the last word. Since the General Assembly alone 

Litho m U.N. 

could vote appropriations, the purpose of the resolu­
tion on unforeseen expenses was simply to allow for 
the fact that the General Assembly was not in con­
tinuous session; if it were, the resolution would have 
no point. When the Assembly was in session it could 
consider any request by the Secretary-General. The 
amendment to the Financial Regulations proposed by 
the Advisory Committee modified the powers of the 
General Assembly and therefore required legal 
analysis and that being so, it would perhaps be well 
to request an advisory opinion of the Office of Legal 
Affairs. 

62. For those reasons the Pakistan delegation was 
most hesitant to support the Advisory Committee's 
report. It felt that delegations needed more time and 
more information before they could declare their 
positions on the basis of full knowledge of all the 
relevant considerations. 

The meeting rose at 1.25 p.m. 

77501-November 1969-2,225 


